
An Equal Opportunity Employer  
 

Jan TenBruggencate Members:   
Chair  Virginia Kapali 
Marissa Sandblom Carol Suzawa  
Vice Chair Patrick Stack 
 Lori Koga 
 Reid Kawane 
 
  

COUNTY OF KAUA'I CHARTER REVIEW COMMISSION 
NOTICE OF MEETING AND AGENDA 

Monday, December 16, 2019 
3:00 p.m. or shortly thereafter 

Mo’ikeha Building, Meeting Room 2 A/B  
4444 Rice Street, Līhu'e, HI  96766 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA  
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
   Open Session Minutes of November 25, 2019  
    
COMMUNICATIONS 
CRC 2019-11 Memorandum received on December 9, 2019 from Nicholas Courson, First 

Deputy County Attorney regarding Proposed 2020 Charter Amendment 
(Member Terms).   

 
CRC 2019-14 Memorandum received on December 9, 2019 from Nicholas Courson, First 

Deputy County Attorney regarding Proposed 2020 Charter Amendment (9A.05, 
Vacancy in Office). 

 
 
CRC 2019-20 Memorandum received on December 9, 2019 from Nicholas Courson, First 

Deputy County Attorney regarding Proposed 2020 Charter Amendment 
(Environmental Services and IT Department). 

 
 
BUSINESS  
CRC 2019-02 General Discussion on Charter Initiatives of Interest 
  
CRC 2019-03 Discussion on County Auditor Position 
 
CRC 2019-05 Proposal to add to Charter, qualifications for Police Chief 
   
CRC 2019-06 Discussion and possible action on proposed Charter amendment regarding 

Ethics Disclosure Statements Requirements  
   
CRC 2019-09 Discussion and possible action on Charter Proposal to amend Article XXVIII 

Cost Control Commission.  



 Charter Review Commission – December 16, 2019   2 | P a g e  

 
CRC 2019-18 Discussion and possible action on letter received from the Salary Commission 

dated November 6, 2019 regarding Proposal Amendment to the Kaua’i County 
Charter.  

 
CRC 2019-19 Discussion and possible action of Proposal to amend Charter Mayoral Chain of 

Succession during a temporary absence.   
 
CRC 2019-21 Discussion and possible action to amend Charter qualifications for a County 

Engineer and Water Manager. 
 
CRC 2019-11 Discussion and possible action on Liquor Control Commission proposal to 

amend Charter Section 23.02(H) on term limits for Boards and Commission 
members. 

 
CRC 2019-14 Discussion and possible action on proposed language for amendment to Charter 

Section 9A.05, Vacancy in Office of Prosecuting Attorney. 
 
CRC 2019-20 Discussion and possible action to introduce a Charter amendment creating a 

department of Environmental Services and Information Technology Department. 
 
CRC 2019-23  Election of Chair and Vice Chair for Calendar Year 2020 
 
CRC 2019-24  Election of Chair and Vice Chair for Calendar Year 2020 Schedule 
 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
Next Meeting:  Monday, January 27, 2020, 3:00 p.m., in the Mo'ikeha Building, Meeting Room 2A/2B 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
 
NOTICE OF EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Pursuant to Hawai‘i Revised Statutes §92-7(a), the Commission may, when deemed necessary, hold an 
executive session on any agenda item without written public notice if the executive session was not 
anticipated in advance.  Any such executive session shall be held pursuant to HRS §92-4 and shall be 
limited to those items described in HRS §92-5(a).  Discussions held in Executive Session are closed to 
the public.   
 
 
cc:  Deputy County Attorney Nicholas Courson 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 Charter Review Commission – December 16, 2019   3 | P a g e  

PUBLIC COMMENTS and TESTIMONY 
 

Persons wishing to offer comments are encouraged to submit written testimony at least 24 hours prior 
to the meeting indicating: 
 

1. Your name and if applicable, your position/title and organization you are representing; 
2. The agenda item that you are providing comments on; and 
3. Whether you will be testifying in person or submitting written comments only; and 
4. If you are unable to submit your testimony at least 24 hours prior to the meeting, please provide 

10 copies of your written testimony at the meeting clearly indicating the name of the testifier; 
and 

5. If testimony is based on a proposed Charter amendment, list the applicable Charter provision. 
 
While every effort will be made to copy, organize, and collate all testimony received, materials 
received on the day of the meeting or improperly identified may be distributed to the members after the 
meeting is concluded.  
 
The length of time allocated to persons wishing to present verbal testimony may be limited at the 
discretion of the chairperson or presiding member. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Send written testimony to: 
Charter Review Commission 
Attn:  Anela Segreti 
Office of Boards and Commissions 
4444 Rice Street, Suite 150 
Līhu‘e, HI  96766 
E-mail:  asegreti@kauai.gov 
Phone:  (808) 241-4917           Fax:  (808) 241-5127       
 
 
 
 
 

SPECIAL ASSISTANCE 
IF YOU NEED AN AUXILIARY AID/SERVICE, OTHER ACCOMODATION DUE TO A 
DISABILITY, OR AN INTERPRETER FOR NON-ENGLISH SPEAKING PERSONS, PLEASE 
CONTACT THE OFFICE OF BOARDS & COMMISSIONS AT (808) 241-4917 OR 
ASEGRETI@KAUAI.GOV AS SOON AS POSSIBLE.  REQUESTS MADE AS EARLY AS POSSIBLE 
WILL ALLOW ADEQUATE TIME TO FULFILL YOUR REQUEST. 
 
UPON REQUEST, THIS NOTICE IS AVAILABLE IN ALTERNATE FORMATS SUCH AS LARGE 
PRINT, BRAILLE, OR ELECTRONIC COPY. 

mailto:asegreti@kauai.gov


 

 

                                                                                            COUNTY OF KAUAI                          
Minutes of Meeting 

OPEN SESSION 
 

Board/Commission:  CHARTER REVIEW COMMISSION Meeting Date November 25, 2019 
Location Mo‘ikeha Building, Meeting Room 2 A/B Start of Meeting:  3:00 p.m. End of Meeting:  5:31 p.m. 
Present Chair Jan TenBruggencate, Vice Chair Marissa Sandblom. Members: Patrick Stack, Lori Koga, Reid Kawane.  Also: Boards & 

Commissions Office Staff: Administrator Ellen Ching, Administrative Specialist Anela Segreti. 
Testifiers:  Cost Control Chair James Whitfield, Liquor Control Commission Commissioner Gerald Matsunaga,  Salary Commission 
Chair Kenneth Rainforth; Michael Dahilig, Managing Director, Department of Water Chief Engineer Bryan Wienand, Dennis Esaki 

Excused Virginia Kapali, Carol Suzawa 
Absent   

 
 SUBJECT DISCUSSION ACTION 

Call To Order   Chair TenBruggencate 
called the meeting to order 
at 3:00 p.m. with five 
members present which 
constituted a quorum. 

Agenda  Hearing no adjustments to 
the agenda Chair 
TenBruggencate approved 
the agenda. 

Approval of 
Minutes 

Open Session Minutes of October 28, 2019 
Executive Session Minutes of October 28, 2019 

Without objections the 
Open Session and Executive 
Session Minutes of October 
28, 2019 were approved as 
submitted.   

Communications CRC 2019-17 Memorandum received from Council Chair, Arryl Kaneshiro dated October 28, 
2019 regarding follow-up to the resolution proposing a charter amendment relating to 
qualifications for the Chief of Police 
 

 
Ms. Koga moved to receive 
CRC 2019-17. Ms. 
Sandblom seconded.  



Charter Review Commission 
Open Session 
November 25, 2019                                         Page 2 
 

 

SUBJECT DISCUSSION ACTION 
 
CRC 2019-18 Letter received from the Salary Commission dated November 6, 2019 regarding 
Proposal Amendment to the Kaua’i County Charter.  

Motion carried 5:0 
 
Ms. Koga moved to receive 
CRC 2019-18. Ms. 
Sandblom seconded.  
Motion carried 5:0 

Business CRC 2019-02 General Discussion on Charter Initiatives of Interest 
  

 
No action 

 CRC 2019-03 Discussion on County Auditor Position 
 
Chair TenBruggencate reminded Commissioners that they are still waiting to hear from Council 
whether they will be hiring.  He recommended deferral. 
 

 
Ms. Koga moved to defer 
CRC 2019-03.  Ms. 
Sandblom seconded.  
Motion carried 5:0 

 CRC 2019-05 Proposal to add to Charter, qualifications for Police Chief 
 
Chair TenBruggencate asked if anyone was present from the Commission.  No one in 
attendance. 
 
Chair TenBruggencate testified at Council meeting and shared that he was not speaking on 
behalf of the Commission, but personally he felt it was a good idea and it didn’t matter who put 
it on ballot.  He suggested that since the Council is proceeding the Commission should defer. 
 
Ms. Ching shared the additional information received from the Council, which is a floor 
amendment (on file) from Councilmember Cowden regarding added testimony from Police 
Commission Chair Hertog during the Public Hearing. 
 
Chair TenBruggencate pointed out the change which specifies 15 years as a Peace Officer in full 
service public sector law enforcement agency. 
 
Ms. Ching explained that it addresses the issue of having experience as an actual police officer, 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ms. Koga moved to receive 
the floor amendment 
document and defer CRC 
2019-05. Ms. Sandblom 
seconded.  Motion carried 



Charter Review Commission 
Open Session 
November 25, 2019                                         Page 3 
 

 

SUBJECT DISCUSSION ACTION 
which they feel is critical. 5:0 

 CRC 2019-06 Discussion and possible action on proposed Charter amendment regarding Ethics 
Disclosure Statements Requirements  
 
Chair TenBruggencate explained that this was the item that would require that people who have 
the authority to bind the County financially be required to submit an Ethics Disclosure 
documents. 
 
Chair TenBruggencate made note that there is a potential of having about a dozen or more 
Charter Amendments and that they may not want to put that many on the ballot and reminded 
the Commissioners that they keep in mind that they retain the authority to not put all that have 
been approved on the ballot.  To make sure they don’t confuse voters with too many options. 
 
Ms. Ching reported that the Board of Ethics met and the amendments are in the process of being 
drafted and will be forwarded to this Commission after approval. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ms. Koga moved to defer 
CRC 2019-06.  Ms. 
Sandblom seconded.  
Motion carried 5:0 

 CRC 2019-09 Discussion and possible action on Charter Proposal to amend Article XXVIII 
Cost Control Commission. 
 
Chair reminded Commission this was to add Revenue Enhancement to Cost Control. 
 
Chair James Whitfield appeared on behalf of the Cost Control Commission.  He shared his 
research on Maui and Hawaii Island Counties.  He sent a copy of a report from Maui (not 
received).  He reported that Maui and Hawaii Island commissions work very closely with the 
Auditor.  The Cost of Government Commission (Maui) looks at revenue enhancement as well 
as being more efficient in the cost.  He read the Cost of Government Commissions mandates 
and excerpts from their 2017-2018 annual report.  For Hawaii Island they meet every four (4) 
years and make recommendations to the Auditor, both cost and revenue enhancement. 
 
Ms. Sandblom supports moving it along, but does not feel it’s as simple as adding Revenue 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Charter Review Commission 
Open Session 
November 25, 2019                                         Page 4 
 

 

SUBJECT DISCUSSION ACTION 
Enhancement.  When she looks at the subsections there are references to cutting cost and may 
need a sentence or two to clarify.  She is in support of moving it along and getting language 
drafted. 
 
Chair Whitfield mentioned that Deputy County Attorney Andrew Michaels had met with him 
and put together language to add in revenue enhancement. 
 
Chair TenBruggencate requested that Vice Chair Sandblom work with the Deputy County 
Attorney on proposed language. 

 
 
 
 
 
Mr. Patrick moved to defer 
and assign to Vice Chair 
Sandblom to write proposed 
language for CRC 2019-09. 
Mr. Kawane seconded.  
Motion carried 5:0 

 CRC 2019-11 Memorandum received from the Liquor Control Commission dated September 
13, 2019 regarding proposed 2020 Charter Amendment. 
 
Gerald Matsunaga, Liquor Control Commissioner, explained why they are proposing amending 
term limits.  This came up because there is a member of Liquor Control Commission that has 
served two terms that would be an asset to another commission, but cannot without waiting a 
year.  He looked at other counties, Oahu two 5 year terms, Maui and Hawaii Island is one 5 year 
term, but they can choose to serve on another commission if they so desire.  He is aware that it 
is difficult to fill Commissioner slots and the people basically willing to serve are the retirees.  
Those that are gainfully employed normally employers don’t want them to serve unless there is 
a direct benefit to the employer.  He cannot see a good commissioner having to sit out one year 
until he can serve on another commission. 
 
Chair TenBruggencate shared that there is the question on whether the voters would approve 
that.  He mentioned that this issue came up at the Council meeting last week.  And that there 
was a fairly heated discussion that reappointing commissioners is a shame and that there are lots 
of people that are willing to serve.  He acknowledged that he is aware that it is hard to recruit.   
 
Ms. Sandblom clarified that the recommendation is to eliminate the one year waiting period, 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Charter Review Commission 
Open Session 
November 25, 2019                                         Page 5 
 

 

SUBJECT DISCUSSION ACTION 
and it is still in support of two term limit per commission, 
 
Mr. Matsunaga stated that there could be a provision that you could serve 2 terms on one 
commission, but if you want to continue to serve it would need to be on another commission. 
 
Mr. Stack asked what his position is on waiting out a year. 
 
Mr. Matsunaga feels that if he has to sit out a year, he would probably not be interested on 
serving on another commission. 
 
Dennis Esaki testified that what may also preclude people from serving is that if they are on one 
board you cannot serve on another board for any other group. 
 
Chair TenBruggencate clarified that the term limit was voted in about 10 years ago.  The 
concern as he remembers is that the same people were getting in and the pause would allow 
more people to participate in volunteering.  The other side of this is that it’s difficult to get 
someone and we have commissions that are running at half-staff. 
 
Ms. Koga asked if before the change it was easier to fulfil the commissions. 
 
Ms. Ching responded that there is a common perspective that there are lots of people who are 
willing to serve.  From calling numerous people this year, it is not the case, there are a lot of 
people that are not available for a variety of reasons. 
 
Ms. Sandblom clarified that someone willing to serve has a process to go through, even without 
the one year waiting period. It is not a guarantee that once you apply you are in. 
 
Chair TenBruggencate requested that proposal be sent to County Attorney’s Office for review. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ms. Sandblom moved to 
approve and move forward 
with  CRC 2019-11. Mr. 
Patrick seconded.  Motion 



Charter Review Commission 
Open Session 
November 25, 2019                                         Page 6 
 

 

SUBJECT DISCUSSION ACTION 
carried 5:0 

 CRC 2019-14 Discussion and possible action on proposed language for amendment to Charter 
Section 9A.05, Vacancy in Office of Prosecuting Attorney. 
 
Chair TenBruggencate explained that this was a housekeeping measure to correct the fact there 
is some confusing language regarding what point a deputy gets appointed into a vacancy and 
what point to a new election. 
 
Ms. Ching reported that the language received from the Prosecuting Attorney was sent to the 
County Attorney’s Office for review.  It will be forwarded to the Commission when it is 
reviewed and sent back. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Vice Chair Sandblom 
moved to defer CRC 2019-
14.  Ms. Koga seconded.  
Motion carried: 6:0 

 CRC 2019-18 Discussion and possible action on letter received from the Salary Commission dated 
November 6, 2019 regarding Proposal Amendment to the Kaua’i County Charter. 
 
Kenneth Rainforth, Chair Salary Commission testified that the language submitted previously.  The 
Commission wants language amended to give the Salary Commission sole discretion for 
determining salaries for elected and appointed officials.  They want to keep any language that this 
would be salary caps, the appointed body could have a reduced compensation.  He was surprised 
that none of the Council Members could form a coalition to vote down the proposal, which goes to 
the point that they may not be the right party to be determining what salaries should be for elected 
and appointed officials.  
 
Chair TenBruggencate asked for clarification on proposed language that would have compensation 
for directors and deputy directors have reasonable relationship to the compensation in the private 
and public sectors. 
 
Mr. Rainforth replied that they do look at compensation in the private and public sector, but does 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Charter Review Commission 
Open Session 
November 25, 2019                                         Page 7 
 

 

SUBJECT DISCUSSION ACTION 
not think that it is necessary in a Charter amendment. 
Chair TenBruggencate summarized that the language regarding compensation having a reasonable 
relationship to private and public sector is not necessary, but that the language regarding the 
Commission have sole discretion to determine salary caps for elected and appointed officials. 
 
Mr. Rainforth confirmed. 
 
Chair TenBruggencate expressed his concern of putting this on the ballot so soon after it was turned 
down.  He suggested they defer to think and discuss at one more meeting. 
 
Ms. Sandblom asked if it was the Salary Commission’s recommendation to move ahead with this 
wording in particular or would they be open to putting on the same language as put on ballot last 
year. 
 
Mr. Rainforth could not answer the question. 
 
Michael Dahilig, Managing Director, clarified that he wanted to be clear that the Commission has a 
copy of another proposal that may be in better discourse, rather than looking at the powers of the 
Commission and it may work well with the Commission’s recommendation.  What may make sense 
is something that talks about the make-up of the Commission and have them be the final arbiter of a 
salary recommendation.  The Council would have an indirect input into the process.  He suggested 
the Commission take a look at other proposals like that. 
 
Chair TenBruggencate clarified that the proposal would require that an equal amount of members 
be appointed by the mayor and council.  The six members would agree upon a chair that would 
serve as the seventh member.  That would be the final authority of the salaries.  This allows the 
Council to have a larger influence on developing the resolution. 
 
Chair TenBruggencate asked if the two proposals could be combined?   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Charter Review Commission 
Open Session 
November 25, 2019                                         Page 8 
 

 

SUBJECT DISCUSSION ACTION 
Mr. Dahilig responded that it could be a better way for the Council to have indirect representation 
into the process, rather than a simple confirmation process. 
 
Mr. Rainforth thinks it’s an interesting proposal, but he can’t see three appointees each from Mayor 
and Council finding a seventh commissioner.  It makes more sense to him if the six commissioners 
elected one of themselves as chair and then seventh is appointed from the Mayor or Council 
depending on the who’s appointee created a vacancy. 
 
Chair TenBruggencate asked for the Salary Commission to discuss the two proposals and develop 
language to look at. 
 
Mr. Rainforth thought it could be done at the Dec. 4 meeting.   
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
Ms. Koga moved to defer 
CRC 2019-18.  Ms. 
Sandblom seconded.  
Motion carried 5:0 
 
Ms. Sandblom moved to 
refer to the Salary 
Commission for a 
recommendation on how to 
proceed.  Ms. Koga 
seconded.  Motion carried 
5:0 

 CRC 2019-19 Discussion and possible action of Proposal to amend Charter Mayoral Chain of 
Succession during a temporary absence.   
 
Chair TenBruggencate reviewed the current succession. 
 
Mr. Dahilig discussed with the Commission the chain of succession, when it was written the 
language of when the Mayor is outside of the County was when there were no cell phones, inter-
island travel was not as frequently available.  In this day and age the interconnectedness of an 
individual who is charged with authority may not be as isolated as thirty to forty years ago.  He 
directed the Commission to the first clause that is when the Mayor is out of the County.  Pointed 
out that some other counties have it where to when the Mayor is out of State may be how to address 
this issue.  There is a question whether the Deputy Finance Director is an appropriate move and 
may need to be clarified. Only having three firm individuals with the ability to assume continuity of 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Charter Review Commission 
Open Session 
November 25, 2019                                         Page 9 
 

 

SUBJECT DISCUSSION ACTION 
government is a very small range of people if you’re looking at the person being outside of the 
County of Kauai.   
 
Chair TenBruggencate recapped that the Commission could do nothing at all, or change County to 
State.  He asked if Mr. Dahilig had any suggestions to continued list of succession. 
 
Mr. Dahilig replied that he would suggest it remain on the Administrative side, individuals with the 
breath of responsibilities, experience going in to the position, i.e. County Attorney vs. 
Transportation Director. 
 
Ms. Koga asked if the Mayor is out of state he can’t be called and asked administrative questions. 
 
Chair TenBruggencate clarified that the Charter language is that someone else is in charge because 
he is physically not in the county. 
 
Mr. Dahilig shared that when the Mayor was in Japan, he was consulted on all calls that needed to 
be made on his behalf. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ms. Sandblom moved to 
defer CRC 2019-19.  Ms. 
Koga seconded.  Motion 
carried 5:0 

 CRC 2019-20 Discussion and possible action to introduce a Charter amendment creating a 
department of Environmental Services and Information Technology Department. 
 
Mr. Dahalig stated that Mayor Kawakami is aware that he is present to discuss the proposed 
amendments.  He explained that the administration believes that county government needs to be 
redefined to reflect some of the demands that both of these things require.  A more intention focus 
on Environmental Services as well as how we deliver and retain information and how that’s 
prioritized.  The Environmental Services needs to be done by Charter because it’s folded in to the 
public works discussion.  If look at Information Technology this needs the endorsement of the 
population and the electorate to support such an investment.   
 
Mr. Dahilig went on to share with the Commission that Kauai is the only County that has Solid 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Charter Review Commission 
Open Session 
November 25, 2019                                         Page 10 
 

 

SUBJECT DISCUSSION ACTION 
Waste and Waste Water lumped into Public Works.  What has changed is that engineering is no 
longer just simply running infrastructure and building it, it is also how you meet regulatory 
compliance.  Solid Waste and Waste Water are high regulatory needy divisions.  The amount of 
attention needed may not rise to the County Engineer to focus and be able to assure that the County 
remain in compliance.   
 
Mr. Dahilig then shared that the amount of investment the County is making in Information 
Technology is minimal in comparison to similar private sector corporations, dollar for dollar.  The 
requirement for the County to be more customer focused, and take care of digital information and 
also provide interfaces for self-service is becoming more of a demand on government.  Feels this 
needs to rise to the level of a department.  It is currently in the Finance Department. 
 
Chair TenBruggencate shared that perhaps that they could move this to the Board of Water. The 
Commission discussed Solid Waste vs. Waste Water and how they are different and proposal to 
create its own Department. 
 
Bryan Wienand, Chief Engineer Department of Water stated he supports the proposal of creating an 
Environmental Services Department.  Within Civil Engineering Water, Waste Water are separate 
disciplines.  Looking at neighbor island structures is good to follow and focusing on regulatory 
compliances is something that is growing in scope and complexities.  Makes sense to have 
Environmental Services with different divisions, i.e. Waste Water and Solid Waste.  It is separate 
from potable, drinking water and would urge that they remain separate.  
 
Mr. Stack asked what the cost would be. 
 
Mr. Dahilig responded that at a minimum it would require two employees.  Environmental Services 
Director, perhaps a Deputy, and at least a private secretary. 
 
Ms. Koga asked about the qualifications for the Directors and the minimum of 5 years is all that’s 
needed. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Charter Review Commission 
Open Session 
November 25, 2019                                         Page 11 
 

 

SUBJECT DISCUSSION ACTION 
 
Mr. Dahilig responded that rather than focusing on a particular credential, someone who has a 
bachelor’s degree in political science, but has a Microsoft 1 certification and working in the field 
for fifteen years, might be better suited than someone coming out with a Master’s degree in IT.  
 
Chair TenBruggencate asked if there would be two deputies, one for solid waste and one for waste 
water, and if the subsections should be in the Charter. 
 
Mr. Dahilig responded that it’s not unprecedented, and the subsections should be left to be defined 
through the budget process or by ordinance. 
 
Ms. Sandblom asked if there was anything that precludes IT from doing the duties now. 
 
Mr. Dahilig responded that it is looking at county operations and bringing IT to a higher level of 
responsibility and investments, places it in higher prioritization.   
 
Mr. Wienand, shared the Department of Water is also making a similar push to invest in IT.  When 
they completed their strategic plan it’s very much in-line with what was shared.  They found that 
their staffing level was low and the investment made now shows a stronger benefit.  IT was 
previously under administration, and they function independently and should be on it’s own. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Mr. Kawane moved to 
approve Environmental 
Services and forward for 
review by the Office of thr 
County Attorney.  Ms. Koga 
seconded.  Motion carried 
5:0 
 
Ms. Sandblom moved to 
approve IT Services and 
forward for review by the 
Office of the County 
Attorney.  Mr. Stack 
seconded. Motion carried 
5:0 

 CRC 2019-21 Discussion and possible action to amend Charter qualifications for a County 
Engineer and Water Manager. 
 
Mr. Dahilig explained that these are looking at a balance of requisite knowledge and ability to lead 
and broadening the language, not necessarily removing requirements of a Registered Engineer.  He 

 
 
 
 
 



Charter Review Commission 
Open Session 
November 25, 2019                                         Page 12 
 

 

SUBJECT DISCUSSION ACTION 
discussed reasons of why  
Mr. Wienand shared that overall it is a challenge to find a right mixture, a starting with a field of 
licensed engineers automatically narrows the pool, but at the same time the licensure has value as it 
speaks to minimum proficiency and at the same time could look at restructuring where the 
delegated authority.  Currently a technical person is being asked to do both technical and 
managerial work at a broad level.  If possible it would be more effective to have a technical person 
focusing on technical matters and a separate person covering the managerial and leadership aspects, 
he would suggest that this would be more effective.  He would caution removing the professional 
licensure entirely.  He suggests at segregating the duties and looking at two highly technical 
positions rather than increasing the salary for Department of Water.  Mr. Wienand stated that the 
licensure in Hawaii is only in Hawaii, there is no reciprocity.  He clarified that the test is the same 
is in every state and the requirement should be for a Professional Civil Engineer’s License so that 
it’s not another layer for someone to navigate if they are applying from out of state. 
 
Dennis Esaki, Esaki Surveying, is against removing the engineering requirement.  He doesn’t 
believe it’s mainly the salary that causes the lack of applicants.  His new person does not make 
$137,000 a year, and he has a Chief Engineer as he requires.  Some of the requirements, political 
aspects, maybe an Administrative Services person could help.   
 
Vice Chair asked if the test changes so that it would be hard for someone who waits to take and 
pass the test. 
 
Mr. Esaki replied that the tests evolves and it’s hard to remember things from college so it would be 
hard.  He believes it is important for the head to have a license. 
Ms. Koga asked about whether it was because it’s the title, County Engineer rather than Director of 
Public Works. 
 
Mr. Dahilig explained that currently the pool has to have the registered engineer as well as the 
managerial experience.  Suggesting that the two are not necessarily exclusive. They do not want to 
eliminate the requirement of licensure, but want to also be able to look at people with the expertise, 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Mr. Stack moved to defer 
CRC 2019-21. Mr. Kawane 
seconded.  Motion carried 



Charter Review Commission 
Open Session 
November 25, 2019                                         Page 13 
 

 

SUBJECT DISCUSSION ACTION 
but not the certification. 5:0 

 CRC 2019-22 For discussion and possible action Charter Review Commission Timeline 2020 for 
Charter Amendments. 
 
Chair TenBruggencate pointed out that they cannot take anymore new items after March as it takes 
two meetings. 
 
Ellen Ching, Administrator Boards and Commissions explained that staff looked at past calendar to 
draft this timeline.  She has sent it to Council to review as well and she is waiting for response from 
Council. 

 
 
 
 
 
Mr. Stack moved to receive 
CRC 2019-22.  Ms. 
Sandblom seconded.  
Motion carried 5:0 

Announcements Next meeting:  Monday, December 16, 2019, 3:00 p.m., in the Mo’ikeha Building, Meeting Room 
2A/2B.   
 
Commission discussed changing meeting date from December 23, 2019 to December 16, 2019. 

 
Ms. Sandblom moved to 
change the date of the next 
meeting to December 16, 
2019.  Mr. Kawane 
seconded.  Motion carried 
5:0 

Adjournment  With no objection, Chair 
TenBruggencate adjourned 
the meeting at 5:31 pm. 

 
 
Submitted by:  __________________________________  Reviewed and Approved by: _________________________________________ 
                         Anela Segreti, Administrative Specialist      Jan TenBruggencate, Chair 
 
(  )  Approved as circulated. 
(  )  Approved with amendments.  See minutes of ___________ meeting.  



OFFICE OF THE COUNTY ATTORNEY
THE COUNTY OI KAUA'I
DTREK S. K. KAIVAKANTI, ]VlAYOR

NIICHAEL A. DAHTLIG, MANACINC DIRECTOR

IITATTHE!V NT. BRACKEN
COUNl'I ATTI)RNEY

NICHOLAS R. COURSON
FIRSI DEPIJI}

TO: Jan TenBruggencate, Chair

VIA: Ellen Ching. Administrator

FROM: Nicholas R. Courson, First Deputy County Attorney 7z t-- Oigitally5igned by
NicholasCourson
Date:2019.12.09
09:02:39-1000

RE Proposed 2020 Charter Amendment (Member Terms)
(cRC 2019-r r)
(OCA Tracking # l9- I 555)

DATE: December 9. 2019

On November 27.2019. a request for review ofthe form and legality ofthe attached charter
amendment was made. The attached is a duplicate of a proposed charter amendment to Section
23.02(H) that failed to pass in 2012. The purpose ofthe amendment would be to allow a county
board or commission member to continue serving on a diftbrent board or commission without the
need to take a one ycar break in service.

The attached is approved as to lbrrn and legality.

wir'w.kauai.gov

4,144 Rice Street Suire 220 . Ilhu'e, Hawai'i 96766. (8/.ts],241-4931 O). (8O8) 241-6319 (0

An Equal OPPortunitY EmPloyer #s
cKcp)9-t)



OFFICE OF BOARDS & COMMISSIONS
OFFICE OT THE MAYOR
THE COUNTY Of KAUA'I

ELLEN CHTNG
AD\lI:\_ ISTRATOR

DEREK S. K. KAWAI(AMI, MAYOR
MICHAET A. DAHILIG, MANAGINC DIRECTOR

MEMORANDUM

September 13, 2019

TO: Jan TenBruggencate, Chair and members ofthe Charter Review Commission

FROM: Paul Endo, Chair

RE: Proposed 2020 Charter Amendment

The Liquor Commission is proposing an amendment to allow individuals serving on

Commissions, Boards or Committees whose term will be ending to continuing serving on a
different Commission, Board or Committee.

Background: ln 2012, a similar Charter Amendment was proposed and appeared on the ballot
and failed.

The question appeared on the ballot as follows:

"Should a county board or commission memberwhose term is ending be allowed to serve on a

different county board or commission without being required to wait one year?

The following was provided as voter education:

REI.ATING TO SECTION 23.03 {HI - COUNTY BOARO AND COMMISSION MEMBER TERMS

"Should a county board or commission member whose term is ending be allowed to serve on a

different county board or commission without being required to wait one year? Vote YES or
NO

BackEround: Cou nty board and commission members are prohibited from serving more
than two consecutive terms on the same or different board or commission unless they
take a one year break from serving.

Explanation: This restriction d iscou rages qualified individuals from continuing to
volunteer and use their acquired experience and knowledge in other areas of interest
that may be beneficial to the county. The purpose of this amendment is to allow a

county board or commission memberto continue serving on a different board or
commission without the need to take a one year break in service.

www.kauai.gov
4,t44 Rice Srreet Suire 150 . Lihu e, tlawai'i XiTg . (E08l2414922 (b) . (808) 2{l -5127 (0

An Equ3l Opportunity Employer

cRc a1lcl- t)



The following (full textl was provided on the website:

2. ProposinS A Charter Amendment to Section 23.02 (H) Relatint to County Eoard and
Commisslon Member Terms

Charter Amendment

ARTTCIE XXilt

terms on orsame

terms



OFFICE OF THE COUNTY ATTORNEY
THE COUNTY OF KAUA'I
DEREK S. K. KAWAKAMI, MAYOR
trTICHAEL A. DAHILIG, MANACING DIRECTOR

IIIATTHETV IU. BRACKEN
COUNII ATTOR\IiY

NICHOTAS R. COURSON
IIRST DEPU IY

TO

RE

VIA:

FROM:

DA-I'F-:

Jan TenBruggencate, Chair

Ellen Ching, Administrator

Nicholas R. Courson, First Deputy County Attorney

Proposed 2020 Charter Amendment (9A.05, Vacancy in Office)
(cRC 2019-r4)
(OCA Tracking # 19-1495)

December 9, 2019

www. kauai.gov

4444 Rice Street Suite 220 . Lihu'e, Hawai'i 96766 . (W\ 2a14930 (b) . (808) 2a1-5319 (0
An Equal Oppotunity Emplover

On November 12,2019, a request was made for review ofthe form and legality ofa proposal to
change the time period in section 9A.05 from one year to eighteen months. On December 9.
201 9. based on my initial ieedback, a revised proposed charter amendment was submitted. which
is attached to this response.

The attached proposed charter amendments is approved as to form and legality.

Ss
CRc ao17'11'



Section 9A.05 of the Kaua'i County Charter is amended to read as follows:

ARTICLE IXA
PROSECUTING ATTORNEY

Section 9A.05. Vacancy in Office.

A. lf the unexpired term is less than [a1eaq] eiqhteen months, the first deputy
shall act as prosecuting attorney. lf the position of first deputy is vacant or if the first
deputy is unable to so act, the mayor with the approval of the council shall fill the
vacancy by appointment of a person with requisite qualifications within thirty days after
the occurrence of the vacancy.



OFFICE OF THE COUNTY ATTORNEY
THE COUNTY OE KAUA'I
DEREK S. K. KA}VAI(AMI, MAYOR
MICHAEL A. DAHILIG, MANACINC DIRECTOR

NTATTHEIY IlT. BRACKEN
COU)iTY AIIoRNE)

NICHOLAS R. COURSON
EIRST DEPL'ft'

TO: Jan TenBruggencate, Chair

VIA: Ellen Ching, Administrator

FROM: Nicholas R. Courson, First Deputy County Attomey %l l'*-
Digitally signed by
Nichola5 Courson
Date:2019.12.09
l3:51:07 -10'00'

Rti Proposed 2020 Charter Amendment (Environmental Services and IT Department)
(cRC 20r9-20)
(OCA Tracking # l9- l 554)

DATE: December 9. 2019

On November 27.2019, a request was made for review ofthe form and legality of two proposed
charter amendments to add a Department olEnvironmental Services and to add a Department of
Information Technology. On December 9. 2019. based on my initial feedback, two revised
proposed charter amendments were submitted. which are attached to this response.

www.kauai.gov
4,144 Rice Street Suire 220 . Lihu'e, Hawai,i 95766 . (8Ca) 241_4930 (b) . (S,0S) 2a1$19 (0

An Eual Opportunity Employer

I

The attached proposed charter amendments are approved as to form and legality.

CRC.ao12-p6



ARTICLE
D EPARTM ENT O F I N FO RM-ATION T EC H NOLOGY

Section _. Organization. There shall be a department of information technology
consisting of an information technology director and any necessary staff.

Section _. Director. The information technology director shall be appointed
and may be removed by the mayor. The director shall have had a minimum of five
years of experience in a responsible administrative capacity, either in public service or
private business, or both, and shall be the administrative head of the department.

Section _. Powers, Duties and Functions. Except as otherwise provided by law,
the director of information technology shall:

A. lnstall, operate, and maintain information technology and telecommunications
systems for the county.

B. Direct and perform the program planning for the county's information technology
and te lecomm u n icatio n s systems.

C. Direct and perform the planning, engineering, design, and construction for minor
improvement and repair projects for the county's information technology and
telecommunications systems, as determined and identified by the director.

E. Advise the mayor on information technology and telecommunication technology
matters.

F. Perform such other duties and functions prescribed by law or assigned by the
mayor.

D. Provide technical expertise and support in information technology and
telecommunication technology to lhe county.



ARTICLE 
-DE PARTM E NT oF E NVI Ro-N NI E ]wAL S E RVIC ES

Section Organization. There shall be a department of environmental
services consisting of a director and any necessary staff.

Section Director. The director of environmental services shall be appointed
and may be removed by the mayor. The director of environmental services shall have
had a minimum of five years of experience in a responsible administrative capacity,
either in public service or private business, or both, and shall be the administrative head
of the department.

Section Powers, Duties, and Functions. Except as otherwise provided by
law, the director of environmental services shall:

A. Manage the solid waste, wastewater, and recycling programs of the county

B. Plan, design, build, operate, and mainlain solid waste collection, processing,
and disposal systems, including recycling programs.

D. Guide efforts to optimize opportunities for environmental, natural resource
protection, sustainability, conservation, and restoration.

E. Promulgate rules and regulations as necessary to administer and enforce
requirements established by law.

F. Perform such other duties and functions prescribed by law or assigned by the
mayor.

C. Plan, design, build, operate, and maintain the county's sewer treatment
plants, pump stations, sewer lines, reclaimed water distribution systems, and
related programs.




